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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Governing Board
City of McClusky
McClusky, North Dakota

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying modified cash basig financial
statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
the discretely presented compenent unit, each major fund and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the City of McClusky, McClusky,
North bDakota, as of and for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015,
and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the city’'s basic financial statements as listed in the table of
contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of
these financial statements in accordance with the wmodified cash basis of
accounting described in Note 1; this includes determining that the
modified cash basis of accounting is an acceptable basis for the
preparation of the financial statements in the circumstances.

Management is also resgonsible for the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our respensibility is Lo express opinions on these financial statementa
based on our audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in_the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
gelected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the city’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
urpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the city's
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present
fairly, in all material respects, the respective modified cash basis
finanvial position of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of McClusky,
McClusky, North Dakota, as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, and the
resgectlve changes in modified cash basis financial position; and where
app icable, cash flows thereof for the years then ended in accordance
with the modified cash basis of accounting described in Note 1.



Basgis of Accounting

We draw attention to Note 1 of the financial statements, which describes
the basis of accounting. The financial statements are prepared on the
modified cash basis of accounting, which is a basis of accounting other
than accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. Our opinions are not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters

Other Information

our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the
financial statemente that collectively comprise the city’'s basic
financial statements. The management’'s digcussion and analysis,
budgeting comparison information, schedule of employer’'s share of net
pension liability and the schedules of fund activity arising from cash
transactions are pregented for additional analysis and are not a
required part of the basic financial statements.

The management’'s discussion and analysis, budgeting comparison
information, schedule of employer’s share of net pension liability and
the schedules of fund activity arising from cash transactions are the
responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements. BSuch information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audits of the basic financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the
basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. In our opinion, the management’s discussion and
analysis, budgeting comparison information, schedule of emplovex’s share
of net pension liability and the schedules of fund activity arising from
cash transactions are falrly stated, in all material respects, in
relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Govermment Auditing Standards, we have also issued
our report dated May 26, 2017 on our consideration of the city’'s intexnal
control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements
and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope
of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an
opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Covernment Auditing Standards in considering the city’s internal control
over financial reporting and compliance.

Rath and Mehrer, P.C.
Bismarck, North Dakota

May 26, 2017



CITY OF McCLUSKY
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

December 31, 2016 and 2015

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&R) of the City of
McClusky’s financial performance provides an overall review of the
city's financial activities for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2016
and 2015. The intent of the MD&A is to look at the city’s financial
performance as a whole. It should, therefore, be read in conjunction
with the basic financial statements and related notes.

The MD&A is a new element of the Reguired Supplementary Information
specified in the Government Accounting Standards Board’'s (GASB)
Statement No. 34 "Bagic Financial Statements - and Management‘s
Discussion and Analysis - For State and Local Governments". Certain
comparative information between the current fiscal year and the prior
year is required to be presented in the MD&A.

FINANCIAL HIGELIGHTS

Key financial highlights for the year ended December 31, 2016 are as
follows:

* Total net position of the city decreased 545,210 as a result of the
current vyear’'s operations. Net position of the governmental activities
decreagsed 55,321 and net position of the business-type activities
decreased 539,889,

* @Governmental net pogition totaled $251,877 and business-type net
position totaled $217,105,

* Total revenues from all sources were $254,118 for governmental
activities and $131,442 for business-type activities.

* Total expenses were $259,440 for governmental activities and $171i,331
for business-type activities.

* The city’s general fund had $79,451 in total revenues and $92,011 in
total expenditures. Overall, the general fund balance decreased by
312,561 for the vear ended December 31, 2016.

Key financial highlights for the year ended December 31, 2015 are as
follows:

+ Total net position of the city decreased $5,806 as a result of the
current year’s operations. Net position of the governmental activities
increased $17,196 and net position of the business-type activities
decreased $23,001.

* Governmental net position totaled $257,199 and business-type net
position totaled $256,993.

* Total revenues from all sources were $230,362 for governmental
activities and $132,675 for business-type activities.

* Total expenses were $213,167 for governmental activities and $155,677
for buginess-type activities.

* The city’s general fund had $93,066 in total revenues and $99,092 in
total expenditures. Overall, the general fund balance decreased by
56,026 for the year ended December 31, 2015.



USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT

This annual financial report consists of a series of statements and
related footnotes. These statements are organized so that the reader
can understand the city as a financial whole. The statements then
proceed to provide an increasingly detailed look at financial
activities.

The Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities provide
information about the activities of the whole city, presenting both an
aggregate view of the c¢ity’s finances and a longer-term view of those
finances. These statements present information as follows:

% Qovernmental activities - this includes most of the city’s basic
services which are primarily supported by property taxes, user
fees and intergovernmental revenues,

* Business-type activities - this includes those services which
are intended to recover all or a significant part of their costs
through user fees.

Fund financial statements provide the next level of detail. These
atatements tell how services were financed in the short-term as well as
what remains for future gpending. Separate statements for each fund
category - govermmental and proprietary - are presented. The emphasis
of fund financial statements is on major governmental and enterprise
funds, each displayed in a separate column. 2ll remaining governmental
funds are aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds.

REPORTING ON THE CITY AS A WHOLE

Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities

These statements are summaries of all the funds used by the city to
provide programs and activities and attempt to answer the gquestion "How
did the city do fimancially during the years ended December 31, 2016 and
2015%"

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all the city’s
assets and liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as
net posgition. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may
serve ag a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the
¢ity is improving or deteriorating.

The Statement of Activities presents information on how the city’s net
position changed during the fiscal year., This statement is presented
using the modified cash basis of accounting. This basis recognizes
revenues and expenses when they result from cash transactions with
provisions for depreciation of capital assets, and issuance of and
payments made on long-term debt issues.



These two statements report the city’s net position and changes in that
pogition. This change in net position is important because it tells the
reader whether, for the city as a whole, the financial position of the
city has improved or deteriorated. The causes of this change may be the
result of many factorsg, some financial and some not.

In the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, the
city reports governmental and business-type activities. Governmental
activities are the activities where most of the city’s programs and
services are reported including, but not limited to, general government,
public safety, streets and public works, urban and economic development
and culture and recreation. Business-type activities are where the
city’s enterprise services are reported including, but not limited to,
water, sewer and sanitatiomn.

REPORTING ON THE CITY'S MOST SIGNIFICANT FUNDS

Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds

The city uses separate funds to account for and manage money dedicated
for particular purposes {(e.g. taxes collected from special mill levies
and funds received from grants and donations). The fund basis financial
statements allow the city to demonstrate its stewardship over and
accountability for resources provided by taxpayers and other entities.
Fund financial statements provide detailed information about the city’s
major funds. Using the criteria established by GASB Statement No. 34,
the city’s general fund, street and road fund, building fund and job
development authority fund are considered "major governmental funds".
The city's water operating fund, sewer operating fund and garbage
operating fund are considered "major enterprizse funds”.

The city’s other funds, which are used to account for a multitude of
financial trangactions, are summarized under the heading "Other
Governmental Funds®.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY AS A WHOLE

Table I provides a summary of the city’s net position as of December 31,
2016 and 2015. A comparative analysis of city-wide data is presented
for both current years and prior year.

As indicated in the financial highlights above, the city’s net position
decreased by $45,210 and $5,806 for the years ended December 31, 2016
and 2015, respectively. Changes in net position may serve over time as
a useful indicator of the city’s financial position.

As of December 31, 2016, the city’s net position of $468,982 is
segregated into three separate categories. Net investment in capital
assets totals $334,272. It should be noted that these assets are not
available for future spending. The restricted component of net position
is $156,102 of the city’s net position and represents resources that are
subject to external restrictions on how they must be spent. The
remaining unrestricted component of net position is ($21,392) which
includes ($22,014) relating to the reporting of it’'s share of the
unfunded liability for the North Dakota Public Employees Retirement
System as required by GASB Statement No. 68. 'The net amount of $622 ig
available to meet the city’s ongoing obligations.



Table I

Net Position
As of December 31, 2016

Businessg-
Governmental Tvpe
Agsets
Current Agsets 171,275 11,047
Capital Assets (net of
accumulated depreciation) 102,616 231,656
Total Assets 273,891 242,703
Deferred OQutflows of Resources 8,478 0
Liabilities
Current Liabilities 6,499
Long-Term Liabilities 19,100
Net Pension Liability 24,772
Total Liabkilities 24,792 25,598
Deferred Inflows of Rescurces 5,720 0
Net Pogition
Net Investment in Capital Assets 102,616 231,656
Reatricted 156,102
Unrestricted {6,841} (14,551)
Total Net Position 251,877 217,105

As of December 31, 2015, the city’'s net position of §514,192 is
segregated into three separate categories. Net investment in capital
assets totals $349,033. It should be noted that these assets are not
available for future spending. The restricted component of net position
is $143,256 of the city’s net position and represents resourceg that ave
subject to external restrictions on how they must be spent. The
remaining unrestricted component of net position is §21,904 which
includes (%21,550) relating to the reporting of it’s share of the
unfunded liability for the North Dakota Public Employees Retirement
System as required by GASB Statement No. 68. The net amount of 443,454
ig available to meet the city’s ongoing obligations.

¥Wet Position
As of December 31, 2015

Buginess-
Governmental Type
Agsets
Current Assets 171,118 15,590
Capital Assets (net of
accumulated depreciation) 107,630 241,403
Total Assets 278,749 256,993
Deferred Outflows of Resgources 3,037 ]
Liabilities
Net Pension Liability 20,571 0
Deferred Inflows of Resources 4,016 0
Net Pogition )
Net Investment in Capital Assets 107,630 241,403
Restricted 143,256
Unrestricted 6,313 15,590
Total Net Posgition 257,199 256,993



Net Position
As of December 31, 2014

Buginess-
Governmental Tvpe
Aggets
Current Agsets 145,032 28,845
Capital Assets (net of
accumulated depreciation) 112,644 251,150
Total Agsets 261,676 279,985
Deferred Outflows of Resources 2,120 )
Liabilitieg
Net Pension Liability 23,793 o]
Net Pogition
Net Investment in Capital Assets 112,644 251,150
Regtricted 114,250
Unrestricted 13,109 28,845
Total Net Position 240,003 279,985

Table II shows the changeg in net position for the fiscal years ended
December 31, 2016 and 2015. A comparative analysis of city-wide data is
presented for both current years prior year.

Table IT

Changes in Net Position
Ag of December 31, 2016

- Businesg-
Governmental Type
Revenues
Program Revenues:
Charges for Sexrvices 75,519 131,422
Operating Grants and
Contributions 84,957
General Revenues:
Property Taxes 35,665
Other Taxes 21,482
Intergovernmental - Unrestricted 21,611
Interest Earnings and
Other Revenue 14,884 20
Total Revenues 254,118 131,442
Expenses
General Government 48,965
Public Safety 40,374
Streets and Puklic Works 41,190
Urban and Economic Development 92,947
Culture and Recreation 13,730
Other 22,233
Watexr Operating 82,987
Sewer Operating 49,949
Garbage Operating 38,395
Total Expenses 259,440 171,331
Net Change in Position {(5,321) (39,889}




Property taxes comstituted 9%, other taxes 6%, unrestricted
intergovernmental 6%, operating grants and contributions 22%, and
charges for services made up 54% of the total revenues of all activities
of the city for the fiscal year ended Decewber 31, 2016.

General government constituted 11%, public safety 9%, streets and public
works 10%, and enterprise 40% of total expenses for all activities
during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2016.

Changes in Net Position
As of December 31, 2015

Business-
Governmental Type
Revenues
Program Revenues:
Charges for Services 67,074 132,655
Operating Grants and
Contributions 60,596
General Revenues:
Property Taxes 35,672
Other Taxes 22,991
Intergovernmental - Unrestricted 32,570
Interest Earnings and
Other Revenue 11,460 20
Total Revenues 230,363 132,675
Expenses
General Government 53,860
Public Safety 29,577
Streets and Public Works 45,180
Urban and Economic Development 61,301
Culture and Recreation 17,069
Other 6,181
Water Operating 74,326
Sewer Operating 32,572
Garbage Operating 48,778
Total Expenses 213,167 155,677
Net Change in Position 17,196 {23,001)

Property taxes constituted 10%, other taxes 6%, unrestricted
intergovernmental 9%, operating grants and contributions 17%, and
charges for services made up 55% of the total revenues of all activities
of the city for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2015.

General government constituted 15%, public safety 8%, streets and public
works 12%, and enterprise 58% of total expenses for all activities
during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2015.



Changes in Net Positiocn

As of December

Revenues

Program Revenues:
Charges for Services
Operating Grants and
Contributions

General Revenues:
Property Taxes
Other Taxes
Intergovernmental - Unrestricted
Interest Earnings and
Other Revenue

Total Revenues

Expenses
General Government
Public Safety
Streets and Public Works
Urban and Economic Development
Culture and Recreation
Other
Watey Operating
Sewer Operating
Garbage Operating

Total Expenses

Net Change in Position

31, 2014
Business-
Governmental Tvpe

31,3892 132,826
76,487
42,123
23,663
31,673

16,559 78

221,893 132,903
58,691
31,597
107,119
50,748
17,443
12,416

97,499

33,368

46,550

278,014 177,418

(56,121) (44,514)

The Statement of Activities shows the cost of program services and the
charges for services and grants offsetting those services. Table III
shows the total cost of services and the net cost of services for
governmental activities. That is, it identifies the cost of these
services supported by tax revenue and other unrestricted revenues.

Table III

Total and Net Cost of Services

As of December 31, 2016

Total Cost Net Cost

Year Ended Year Ended

Dec. 31, 2016 Dec. 31, 2016
General Government 48,965 48,320
Public Safety 40,374 37,506
Streets and Public Works 41,190 (12, 585)
Urban and Eccnomic Development 92,947 {3,037}
Culture and Recreation 13,730 6,526
Other 22,233 22,233
Total Expenses 259,440 98, 964
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Total and Net Cogt of Services
As of December 31, 2015

Tcotal Cost Net Cost
Year Ended Year Ended
Dec, 31, 2015 Dec. 31, 20315

General Government 53,860 53,359
Public Safety 29,577 27,557
Streets and Public Works 45,180 {15,416}
Urban and Economic Development 61,301 7,605
Culture and Recreation 17,069 6,212
Other 6,181 6,181
Total Expenses 213,167 85,498

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

The purpose of the city’s governmental funds is to provide information
on the near-term inflows, outflows and balances of available resources.
Unassigned fund balance generally can be used as a measure of the city's
net resources available for spending as of the end of the fiscal year.
These funds are accounted for using the modified cash basis of
accounting. The city’s govermmental funds had total revenue of $254,118
and expenditures of $253,962 for the year ended December 31, 2016. For
the year ended December 31, 2015, the city’'s governmental funds had
total revenue of $230,363 and expenditures of $208,276. BAs of December
31, 2016, the unassigned fund balance of the city’s general fund was
$16,645 and total unassigned fund balances for all the city’s
governmental funds was $15,173. As of December 31, 2015, the unassigned
fund balance of the city’s general fund was $29,206 and total unassigned
fund balances for all the city’'s governmental funds was $27,863.

GENERAIL: FUND BUDGET HIGHLIGHTS

During the course of fiscal years 2016 and 2015, the city did not amend
the general fund budgets.

Actual revenue for the year ended December 31, 2016 was §12,805 less
than budgeted. This variance was mainly due to the city underestimating
total collections for sales taxes and overestimating total collections
for state aid distribution. Actual expenditures for the year ended
December 31, 2016 were under budget by 317,264. This variance was
mainly due to the city overestimating appropriations for general
government purposes.

Actual revenue for the year ended December 31, 2015 was $4,550 more than

budgeted. Actual expenditures for the year ended December 31, 2015 were
under budget by $7,188.

11



CAPITAL ASSETS

As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the city had $334,272 and $349,033,
respectively, invested in capital assets. The following tables show the
balances, for governmental and business-type activities, as of December

31, 2016, 2015 and 2014.

Table IV

Capital Assets
{Net of Accumulated Depreciaticn)
As of December 31, 2016

Business-
Governmental Type
Buildings and Infrastructure 100,264 231,656
Machinery and Vehicles 2,352
Total {net of depreciation) 102,616 231,656

This total represents a decrease of $14,761 in capital assets from
January 1, 2016.

Capital Assets
(Net of Accumulated Depreciation}
As of December 31, 2015

: Business-
Governmental Type
Buildings and Infrastructure 102,931 241,403
Machinery and Vehicles 4,699
Total (net of depreciation} 107,630 241,403

This total represents a decrease of $14,761 in capital assets from
January 1, 2015.

Capital Assets
{Net of Accumulated Depreciation)
As of December 31, 2014

Businegs-
Governmental Type
Buildings and Infrastructure 105,598 251,150
Machinery and Vehicles 7,046
Total (net of depreciation} 112,644 251,150

For a detailed breakdown of the additions and deletions to capital
assets, readers ave referred to Note 5 to the audited financial
statements which follow thig analysis.

12




DEBT ADMINISTRATION

As of December 31, 2016, the city had $25,598 in outstanding debt of
which $6,499 was due within one year. During fiscal year 2016, the
gity issued one new long-term debt obligation:

Bank Loan Payable, in the amount of $27,000. The city obtained
financing to provide funds for sewer lines flushing and scoping. This
loan will have a final payment on September 1, 2020.

CONTACTING THE CITY’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our taxpayers and creditors
with a general overview of the city’s finances and to show the city’s
accountability for the money it receives. BAnyone who has questions
about information contained in this report or who is interested in
receiving additional information is encouraged to contact Jennifer
Meserole, City Auditor, McClusky, ND.

13



CITY OF McCLUSKY
McClusky, North Dakota

Statement of Net Position - Modified Cash Basis

ASSETS:
Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments

Capital Assets (net of accumulated depreciation):

Buildings and Infrastructure
Machinery and Vehicles

Total Capital Assets
Total Assets

DEFERRED QUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Changes in Resources Related to Pensions

LIABILITIES:

Long-Term Liabilities:
Due Within One Year
Bank Loan Payable
Due After One Year
Bank Loan Payable
Net Pension Liability

Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:

S e ey

Changes in Resources Related to Pensions

NET POSITION:
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted for:
Special Purposes
Unrestricted

Total Net Position

December 31, 2016

. Component
Primary Government Unit
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total Airport
171,275.44 11,046.99 182,322._43 29,994.93
100,264 .00 231,656.00 331,920.00
2,352.00 2,352.00
102,616.00 231,656.00 334,272.00
273,891.44 242,702.99 516,594.43 29,994.93
8,478.00 8,478.00
6,498.56 6,498.56
19,099.87 19,099.87
24,772.00 24,772.00
24,772.00 25,598,43 50,370.43
5,720.00 5,720.00
102,616.00 231,656.00 334,272.00
156,102.42 156,102.42
(6,840.98) (14,551.44) (21,392.42) 29,994.93
251,877.44 217,104.56 468,982.00 29,994.93

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF McCLUSKY
MeClusky, North Dakota

Statement of Net Position - Modified Cash Basis

December 31, 2015

Component
Primary Government unit
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total Airport

ASSETS: ’

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments 171,118.91 15,590.45 186,709 .36 27,728.90
Capital Assets (net of accumulated depreciation):

Buildings and Infrastructure 102,931.00 241,403.00 344,334.00

Machinery and Vehicles 4,699.00 4,699.00

Total Capital Assets 167,630.00 241,403.00 349,033.00

Total Assets 278,748.91 256,993.45 535,742.36 27,728.90
DEFERRED QUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES:

changes in Resources Related to Pensions 3,037.00 3,037.00
LIABILITIES:

Net Pension Liability 20,571.00 20,571.00
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:

Changes in Resources Related to Pensions 4,016.00 4,016.00
NET POSITION:

Net Investment in Capital Assets 107,630.00 241,403.00 349,033.00

Restricted for:

Special Purposes 143,255.74 143,255.74

Unrestricted 6,313.17 15,590.45 21,903.62 27,728.90
Total Net Position 257,198.91 256,993.45 514,192.36 27,728.90

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these firmancial statements.

15




Jdodd Ly
13lun juauoduwod

JUBWUIBA0D AdBWLd 1B10L
sal3lAalloy adAl-ssaulsng 1e30)
BuLyeJadg abequen
Buryedadp JoMas

Builedadp Jaiepd
1SOLJLAL10Y 2CAL-559uLsng

S9L1IALIDY 12IUSUUISALY B10]

Jau30
Uolieadday pue 24nlinj
Justido 13A81 DLWCUOST PUB Uegdn
S3JOM 2110Ngd PUB $399J18
Ajaes 2139nd
JUBUIIRADD JRJBUEY
sS8L1LALIDY 1EIUSULIBADRD
$ JUAMIIBACD ATBWTAI

BHELECAd / S RO T 0TS

(207559°%) 207659°¢
(gy 2/8°8€L) (167806’ 65} (157€96'86) 18956798 Gg L%6'902 %8044 08Y
(167806762 (16°806"65> g zey’lsl S TARR S R WA
20744278 20°4%L°¢ gt ayl vy 8668 8%
(59°6697£8) (59°669'€E) 04769291 GC 696 6%
(§57956°L1) (£5°9667 L1 02705012 £5°986°28
(45°€96786) (/6°€95°88) 18" 956 %8 026155t 85 65" 652
(gR°2£2'22) (88 z52'22) 88"¢5e e
(£%°925'9) (£9°925°9) L9 g02 L +0°08L°EL
9v°180'¢ 9¢°450"€ Co 8l675e 02°900°22 %8 9626
Y1485'2Zl Ylyge'zl C2rsll'ss 9% 06L° LY
(OL"508" 48} (0L"905"25) 00°898°2 GL %€ 0y
(92°028"8%) (92°025'8%) 00 5%9 92°596"8%
ugoahm< 1elo| SSLILALIDY wmmum>muu< suolinglJdiuc)y pue SODLAJSS wwwcm&xw
ma>kawmmcmm:m 1 BIUIUWLLISACD siuedn mE@PMLmQO 494 mmmmeU
1LUN JUsliuiaA0h >LmEmLa SanuUaAly EMLmOLm
Juavodog

uo111s0d 19N Ul saBuey] pue anuaAay (asuadxy) aN

9L0Z ‘LE Jagqueda( pIpul JBIL YL 404
s1seg Ysed PoLiIPol - S2LILALISY 4O JUdWa3lEls

elojeq YiJoN TAYSN|OoN

AASITIIOW 40 ALID



£6° 966" 62 007286 897 95901 212 7971187162
06°822° 27 95 26l vle ch 66 952 L6 86l 452
£0°992°2 (9¢"0lz2’s%} (68°888765) Ly Leg’s)
50" 108°S 2L-299's6 2002 0L"2Z¥9°56
G0 106”6 £6°E06" 4L Z0°02 L6788 %L
6870l9°12 68°0L9°L2
2LU0sL L 2LU05L"L
le78s1702 2e784L102
¥8 gcl #8-¢6L
14751976 1275196
92764092 92°64%0792

gl

*SIUSWIS1E3IS (BLOURULY 9s9Yl 4o 3Jed jelBelul ue sJe sajou BulAuedwoooe Yyl

LE Jequassaq - uoLllsod 38N
| Adenuer - uot3lsod 19N
Uclilsod 38N UL dBueyg
SaNUaAsY |EBJ3U3Y jBj0]

ANUIATL JBYI0 pUB SIUSWISSAUL uo sBuLuJel
swedBoad 51)193ds 03
pe3514359d 30U BNUsAad (ejUsWiULsAlBIajU]
saxe) 933846617
SOXPl §9)ES
1LpeJd XB) pealssucH
sasocdind eloeds Joy peiae} Isoxel Ajasdodd
sasodand tedauab Joi palaa) fsaxel Aldadodd
1saxe)
:5ONUDASY |EJoUsD




3dodaty
13Lun 3usuoduos

JUBWUIBACT AJelitdd 1830]
s52131A139y adAL-ssaulsng 12300
fuLyesadp sbequen
Burjedady JaMas

Buriedadg Jazem
tSBIFLALI0Y PdALl-SsauLsng

SALILALIDY 1BIUSUUIBADD 1B30]

J2yln

uclieadosy pue aJ4niing

#CwEQO~m>wQ Jlweuod3y pue ueqdn

SMJOM 21Y}0Nd pug $323.3§

Alajes 2119nd

JUsUI2A0D (BJaUID

5513 IALI0Y |EJUSWUISA0D
FJUDMIIBACD AXBWEII

EWeIboid ] BUO g oung

(927209 72°208'y
(20°6L5°80L)  (2£7120°¢ed (02" 169" 58) 0296509 28°922 661 oL 49y8'89¢
(z£°120°¢2) (2g"120°€2) 8E 659 28l 0279197851
(16706L'S) (167061°%) 0s*285°¢Y Ly 8sL'8y
(6%°85L79L) (697852791 26788851 9y els’es
(2616071 (26715671 L6 gge sl £ 628’ v.
(02" 26%768) (04°26%°58) 02796509 08" €20"/9 ov 4917612
(g0°18L"%) (£07E8L"9) s018L'9
(2o zL2'9) (20°212'9) 647958 0L L8 890 2L
(#%7509"4) (H9°509°2) LA"669°¢5 g1 L0g'L9
62°9Ly'sl 6291’6l 02'965'09 1664175y
(86°966°42) (867955°42) 00°020°2 B6°9.6°62
(25°86£°¢9) (z5°858'¢s) 007106 26°658°¢€8
yLOQLw< 1elo} mwwuw>my0¢ Sal3LlALldy mcowusnwgucou pue SAJLAJDS mmmcm&xm
adAl-ssauLsng 1e3UBLUISACY sauedn Buiiesadp Joy sabJeyn
ILun JUILRLIBACD Adeunlldd SaNUADY WedBodd
Juauoduon

uolilsod 39N UL saBuey) pue anusady (osuadx3l) 1N

£L07 'lE Jaquaoag pSpul Jeaj syl Jog
siseg Ysen palilpo - S211LALIOY 4O JUSWALELS

B1034EQ YIJON ‘A¥snioon
AASNTO2W 40 ALID



06°821°12 =il RS 18 SY" 5667952 L6 86l 242
808657615 21 667612 LE"E00 0%2
(0" s9°12> (00°529°L2)
AR ra s 80°12971%8 2279667642 1£°9/9°192
8571082 (22°408°%) (2£°100°€2) 09°561"21
28 906"9 0E"sLL7 208 00702 0" £69°201
25°906'9 29708y ’1l 00°02 2905 LL
0¥°045°2¢ 0% 046’28
2eres2’l Pt -r
28°648°02 28°sl8’02
157188 1£7188
62°858'8 62'858'8
69°€1L8°92 697218792

FA

*$IUSWGIBIS 1BIDUBULS 23yl 4o 3Jed eJBolul ue aJe sjou BulAusduodle Ayl

LS Jaquanag - uoct}isod 18N
pajeisad se | AJenuer - uclilsod 19N

Ol 210N 835 ‘jusuwlsn(py polJdasd JOldd
| Adenuepr - uolilsod 18N

uol3lsod 38N ul aBueyn
S8nUaA2Y 1EJOUSD 1B30L

shuUsAsd JBYIO0 puB SIUSUWISIAUL uo sBuUludel
syelBodd 21p1oads 01
P1D1J3S2] 10U ANUBASS RIUIWUIIIACELa UL
saXe] 9138J4eH1)
SaxXel saijeg
1LpaJd Xel peslsaiol
sasodand 1e10ads Jo) palAd) Isexe)y AjJado.dd
sasoddnd eJousb 4oy palAe] fsaxey Aldadodg
1sax%e ]
1SBNUSASY |EJoUsH




ASSETS:
Cash, Cash Equivients and
Investments
Interfund Receivable

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES:
Liabilities:

interfund Payable

Fund Balances:
Restricted for:
General Government
Public Safety
Streets and Public Works
Urban and Econ. Dev.
other Special Purposes
Unassigned

Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

CETY OF McCLUSKY
McClusky, North Dakota

Balance Sheet - Modified Cash Basis

Governmental funds
December 31, 2016

Major Funds

Job Other Total
Street and Development Governmental Governmental

General Road Building Authority Funds Funds
15,173.02 69,353.08 12,690.57 52,793.71 21,265.06 171,275.44
1,472.40 1,472.40
16,645 .42 69,353.08 12,690.57 52,793.71 21,265.06 172,747.84
1,472.40 1,472.40
13,090.96 13,090.96
8,174.10 8,174.10
69,353.08 69,353.08
52,793.71 52,793.71
12,690.57 12,690.57
16,645 .42 (1,472.40) 15,173.02
16,645.42 69,353.08 12,690.57 52,793.71 19,792.66 171,275 .44
16,645.42 69,353.08 12,690.57 52,793.71 21,265.06 172,747.84

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF McCLUSKY
McClusky, North Dakota

Balance Sheet - HModified Cash Basis

Governmental Funds
December 31, 2015

Major Funds

Job Other Total
Street and Development Governmental Governmental
General Road Building Authority Funds Funds
ASSETS:
Cash, Cash Equivlents and
Investments 27,863.17 42,099.26 30,024.24 41,685.03 29,447.21 171,118.91
Interfund Receivable 1,342.85 1,342.85
Total Assets 29,206.02 42,099,256 30,024.24 41,685.03 29,447.21 172,461.76
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES:
Liabilities:
Interfund Payable 1,362.85 1,342.85
Fund Balances:
Restricted for:
General Government 13,272.19 13,272.19
Public Safety 16,175.02 16,175.02
streets and Public Works 42,099.26 42,099.26
Urban and Econ. Dev. 41,685.03 4£1,685.03
Other Special Purposes 30,024.24 30,024.24
Unassigned 29,206.02 (1,342.85) 27,863.17
Total Fund Balances 29,206.02 42,099.26 30,024.24 41,685.03 28,104.36 174,118.91
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 29,206.02 42,099.26 30,024.24 41,685.03 29,647.21 172,461.76

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF McCLUSKY
McClusky, North Dakota

Reconciliation of Governmental Funds Balance Sheet

to the Statement of Net Position - Modified Cash Basis
For the Year Ended December 31, 2016

Total Fund Balances for Governmental Funds
Total net position reported for government activities in the statement of
net position is different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and are not reported in the governmental funds.

Cost of Capital Assets
Less Accumulated Depreciation

Net Capital Assets
The deferred outflows and inflows of resources reported on the
statement of net position are the result of changes in resources

related to pensions and do not affect current financial resources.

Total Deferred Qutflows of Resources
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

Net bDeferred Dutflows/Inflows of Resources
Long-term liabilities applicable to the city’s governmental activities
are not due and payable in the current period and accordingly are not
reported as fund liabilities. Long-term liabilities -both current and
long-term- are reported in the statement of net position. Balances at

December 31, 2016 are:

Net Pension Liability

Total Net Position of Governmental Activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF McCLUSKY
McClusky, North Dakota

Reconciliation of Governmental Funds Balance Sheet

to the Statement of Net Position - Modified Cash Basis
For the Year Ended December 31, 2015

Total Fund Ralances for Governmental Funds 171,118.91
Total net position reported for government activities in the statement of
net position is different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and are not reported in the governmental funds.

Cost of Capital Assets 270,475.00
Less Accumulated Depreciation (162,845.00)
Net Capital Assets 107,630.00

The deferred outflows and inflows of resources reported on the
statement of net position are the result of changes in resources
related to pensions and do not affect current financial resources.

Total Deferred Outflows of Resocurces 3,037.00
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources {4,016.00)
Net Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources {979.00)

Long-term liabilities applicable to the city’s governmental activities
are not due and payable in the current peried and accordingly are not
reported as fund liabilities. Long-term liabilities -both current and
tong-term- are reported in the statement of net position. Balances at
December 31, 2015 are:

Net Pension Liability (20,571.00)

Total Net Position of Governmental Activities 257,198.91

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF McCLUSKY
McClusky, North Dakota

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Modified Cash Basis :
Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2016

Major Funds

Job Other Total
Street and Development Governmental Governmental
General Road Building Authority Funds funds

Reveniues:

Taxes 38,156.31 4,33 8,071.32 2,611.38 55,843 .34

Licenses, Permits and Fees 645.00 72,006.20 72,651.20

Intergovernmental 30,118.4% 53,775.20 23,978.00 107,871.66

Fines and Forfeitures 2,868.00 2,868.00
Miscellaneous 7,663.07 2,313.62 4,899.21 8.01 14,883.91
Total Revenues 79,450.84 56,093.15 4,89%.21 104,055.52 9,619.39 254 118,11
Expenditures:

current:

General Government 37,122.92 8,978.34 46,101.26

Public Safety 31,421.35 8,952.75 40,374.10

Streets and Public Works 9,737.13 28,839.33 38,576.46

Urban and Economic Development 92,946.84 92,946.84

Culture and Recreation 13,730.04 13,730.04

Other 22,232.88 22,232.88
Total Expenditures 92,011.44 28,839.33 22,232.88 92,946 .84 17,931.09 253,961.58
Net Change in Fund Balances (12,560.60) 27,253.82 {17,333.67) 11,108.68 (8,311.70) 156.53
Fund Balance - January 1 29,206.02 42,099.26 30,024.24 £1,685.03 28,104 36 171,118.91
Fund Balance - December 31 16,645.42 69,353.08 12,690.57 52,793.71 19,792.66 171,275.44

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Revenues:

Taxes

Licenses, Permits and Fees
Intergovernmental

Fines and Forfeitures
Miscel laneous

Total Revenues

Expenditures:
Current:

General Government

Public Safety

Streets and Public Works
Urban and Economic Development
Culture and Recreation

Other

Total Expenditures

MNet Change in ¥fund Balances

Fund Balance - January 1

Fund Balance - December 31

For the Year Ended December 31, 2015

CITY OF McCLUSKY

MeClusky, North Dakeota

Modified Cash Basis
Governmental Funds

Major Funds

Jdob Other Total
Street and Development Governmental Governmental

General Road Building Authority Funds Funds
39,339.22 220.33 8,350.29 8,637.96 56,547 .80
501.00 53,695.71 54,196.71
45,541_87 60,596.20 106,138.07
2,020.00 2,020.00
5,664.40 198.50 4,180.18 1,417.34 11,460.42
93,066.49 61,015.03 4,180.18 62,046.00 10,055.30 230,363.00
42,649.98 8,932.54 51,582.52
29,417.00 159.98 29,576.98
9,956.52 32,609.39 42,565.91
61,301.15 61,301.15
17,068.81 17,068.81
6,181.03 6,181.03
99,092.31 32,609.39 6,181.03 61,301.15 9,092.52 208,276.40
(6,025.82)  28,405.64 (2,000.85) V44 .85 962.78 22,086.60
35,231.84 13,693.62 32,025.09 40,940.18 27,141.58 149,032.31
29,206.02 42,099.26 30,024.24 41,685.03 28,104.36 171,118.91

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF McCLUSKY
McClusky, North Dakota

Reconciliation of Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balances to the Statement of Activities - Modified Cash Basis
for the Year Ended December 31, 2016

Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds 156.53

The change in net position reported for governmental activities.in the
statement of activities is different because:

Goverrmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in
the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over
their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This
is the amount by which depreciation exceeded capital cutlay in the
current year.

current Year Capital Outlay 0.00
current Year Depreciation Expense (5,014.00} (5,014.00)

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require
the use of current financial resources and are not required as

expenditures in governmental funds.

Net Increase to Pension Expense (464.00)

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities (5,321.47)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF McCLUSKY
McClusky, North Dakota

Reconciliation of Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balances to the Statement of Activities - Modified Cash Basis
For the Year Ended December 31, 2015

Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds 22,086.60

The change in net position reported for governmental activities in the
statement of activities is different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in
the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over
their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This
is the amount by which depreciation exceeded capital outlay in the
current year.

Current Year Capitat Outlay 0.00
Current Year Depreciation Expense (5,014.00) {5,014£.00)

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require
the use of current financial resources and are not reguired as

expenditures in governmental funds.

Net Decrease to Pension Expense 123.00

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities 17,195.60

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF McCLUSKY

McClusky, North Dakota

Statement of Met Position - Modified Cash Basis
Proprietary Funds
December 31, 2016

ASSETS

Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Interfund Receivables

Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets:

Major Enterprise Funds

Capital Assets (net of accumulated depr):

Buildings and Infrastructure

Total Assets

LEABILITIES:

Current Liabilities:
Interfund Payables
Bank Loan Payable

Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Bank Loan Payable

Total Liabilities
NET _POSITION

Net Investment in Capital Assets
Unrestricted

Total Net Position

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Water Sewer Garbage Total
Operating Operating Operating Enterprise
Fund Fund Fund Funds
46,24 11,000.75 11,0456.99
1,444 .87 1,444.87
1,491.1 11,000.75 12,491.86
3,000.00 228,656.00 231,656.00
4,491.11 228,656.00 11,000.75 244,147 .86
1,444 87 1,444.87
6,498.56 6,498.56
7,943.43 7,943.43
19,099.87 19,099.87
27,043.30 27,043.30
3,000.00 228,656.00 231,656.00
1,491.11 (27,043.30) 11,000.75 (14,551.44)
4,491.11 201,612.70 11,000.75 217,104.56
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CITY OF McCLUSKY

MeClusky, North Dakota

Statement of Net Position - Modified Cash Basis
Proprietary Funds

ASSETS

Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Interfund Receivables

Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets:
Capital Assets (net of accumulated depr):
Buildings and Infrastructure

Total Assets

LEABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
interfund Payables

NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Unrestricted

Total Net Position

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

December 31, 2013

Major Enterprise Funds

Water Sewer Garbage Total
Operating Operating Operating Enterprise

Fund fund Fund Funds
10,346.78 5,243.67 15,590.45
2,090.65 2,090.65
12,437.43 5,243.67 17,681.10
4,000.00 237,403.00 241,403.00
16,437.43 237,403.00 5,243.67 259,084.10
2,090.65 2,090.65
4,000.00 237,403.00 241,403.00
12,437 .43 (2,090.65) 5,243.67 15,590.45
16,437.43 235,312.35 5,243.67 256,993.45
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CITY OF McCLUSKY
McClusky, North Dakota

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position - Modified Cash Basis

Proprietary Funds

For the Year Ended December 31, 2016

Operating Revenues:
charges for Sales and Services:

Water Collections
Sewer Collections
Garbage Collections

Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses:
Water Department
Sewer Department
Garbage Department
Depreciation

Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income (Loss)

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses):

Interest Income

Interest Expense
Jotal Mon-Operating Revenues (Expenses)
thange in Net Positicn

Net Position - January 1

Net Position - December 31

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Major Enterprise Funds

Water Sewer Garbage Total
Operating Operating Operating Enterprise
Fund Fund Fund Funds
71,030.20 71,030.20
16,249.70 16,249.70
44 14245 &b 142 .45
71,030.20 16,249.70 44 142,45 131,422.35
81,986.53 81,986.53
40,745.53 40,745.53
38,395.38 38,395.38
1,000.00 8,747.00 9,747.00
82,986.53 49 492.53 38,395.38 170,874 .44
(11,956.33) (33,242,83) 5,747.07 (39,452.09)
10.01 10.01 20.02
(456.82) (456.82)
10.01 (456.82) 10.01 (436.80)
(11,946.32) (33,699.65) 5,757.08 {39,888.89)
16,437.43 235,312.35 5,243.67 256,993 .45
4,491.11 201,612.70 11,000.75 217,104.56
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CITY OF McCLUSKY
McClusky, North Dakota

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position - Modified Cash Basis
Proprietary Funds

For the Year Ended December 31, 2015

Major Enterprise Funds

Water Sewer Garbage Total
Operating Operating Operating Enterprise
Fund Fund Fund Funds
Operating Revenues:
Charges for Sales and Services:

Water Collections 73,233.91 73,233.91

Sewer Collections 15,833.97 15,833.97

Garbage Collections 43 587.50 43,587.50
Total Operating Revenues 73,233.91 15,833.97 43,587.50 132,655.38
Operating Expenses:

Water Department 73,325.83 73,325.83

Sewer Department 23,825,456 23,825.46

Garbage Department 48,778.41 48,778.41

Depreciation 1,000.00 8,747.00 9,747.00
Total Operating Expenses 74,325.83 32,572.46 48,778.41 155,676.70
Operating Income (Loss) (1,091.92) (16,738.49) (5,190.91) (23,021.32)
Non-Operating Revenues:

Interest Income 10.00 10.00 20.00
Change in Net Position (1,081.92) (16,738.49) ¢5,180.91} {23,001.32)
Net Position - January 1 17,519.35 252,050.84 10,424.58 279,994 .77
Net Position - December 31 16,437.43 235,312.35 5,243.67 256,993.45

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF McCLUSKY

McClusky, Neorth Dakota

Statement of Cash Flows - Medified Cash Basis

Proprietary Funds

For the Year Ended December 31, 2016

Hajor Enterprise Funds

Water Sewer Garbage Total
Operating Operating Operating Enterprise
Fund Fund Fund Funds
Cash flows from operating activities:

Receipts from customers 71,030.20 16,249.70 44, 142.45 131,422.35

Payments to suppliers and employees (81,986.53) (40,745.53)  (38,395.38) (161,127.44)
Net cash provided (used) by

operating activities (10,956.33) (24,495.83) 5,747.07 (29,705.09)
Cash _flows from noncapital financing activities:

Interfund (oan transaction 645.78 (645.78)

Cash flows from capital and related
financing activities :

Proceeds from Loan 27,000.00 27,000.00

Principal payments (1,401.57) (1,601.57)

Interest payments {456.82) (456.82)
Net cash provided (used) by capital and

related financing activities 25,141.61 25,141.61
Cash flows from investing activities:

Interest income 1¢.01 10.01% 20.02
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (10,300.54) 0.00 5,757.08 (4,543 .46)
Cash and cash equivalents, dJanuary 1 10,346.78 -0- 5,243.67 15,590.45
Cash and cash equivalents, December 31 46 .24 -0- 11,000.75 11,046.99

Reconcilation of Operating Income to Net
Cash Provided (Used} by Operating Activities
Operating income (loss) {11,956.33) {33,242.83) 5,747.07 (39,452.09)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net

cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Depreciation expense 1,000.00 8,747.00 9,747.00
Net cash provided (used} by operating activities (10,956.33) (24,495.83) 5,747.07 (29,705.09)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF McCLUSKY
MeClusky, North Dakota

Statement of Cash Flows - Modified Cash Basis

Proprietary Funds

For the Year Ended December 31, 2015

Cash_flows from operating activities:
Receipts from customers
Payments to suppliers and employees

Net cash provided (used) by
operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Interfund loan transaction

Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest income

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

cash and cash equivalents, January 1

Cash and cash equivalents, December 31

Reconcilation of Operating Income to Net
Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

Operating (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net
cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Major Enterprise Funds

Depreciation expense

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Water Sewer Garbage Total
Operating Operating Operating Enterprise
Fund Fund Fund Funds
73,233.91 15,833.97 43,587.50 132,655.38
(73,325.83) {23,825.46)  (48,778.41) (145,929.70)
(91.92) (7,991.49) (5,190.91) (13,274.32)
(2,090.65) 2,090.65
10.00 10.00 20.00
(2,172.57) (5,900.84)  (5,180.91) (13,254.32)
12,519.35 5,900.84 10,424.58 28,844.77
. 10,346.78 ,-_____:?:_ 5,243.67 15,590.45
(1,091.92) (16,738.49) (5,190.91) (23,021.32)
1,000.00 8,747.00 9,747.00
(91.92) (7,991.49) (5,190.91) (13,274.32)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF McCLUSKY
McClusky, North Dakota

Statement of Fiduciary Net Position
Modified Cash Basis - Fiduciary Funds
December 31, 2016

Private-Purpose Agency
Trust Fund Funds

Assets:

Cash and Investments 50,000.00 0.060
Liabilities:

Due to Other Governmental Units 0.00
Net Position:

Held in Trust for Individuals 50,000.00 0.00

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF McCLUSKY
McClusky, Morth Dakota

Statement of Fiduciary Net Position
Modified Cash Basis - Fiduciary Funds
December 31, 2015

Private-Purpose Agency
Trust Fund Funds
Assets:
Cash and Investments 50,000.00 .00
Liabilities:
Due to Other Governmental Units 0.00
Net Position:
Held in Trust for Individuals 50,000.00 0.00

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

33



CITY OF McCLUSKY
McClusky, North Dakota

$tatement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position

Modified Cash Basis - Fiduciary Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2016

Private-Purpose

Trust Fund
Additions:

Interest Income 850.59%9
Deductions:

Other 850.59
Change in Net Position 0.00
Net Position - January 1 50,000.00
Net Position - December 31 50,000.00

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF McCLUSKY
McClusky, North Dakota

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position

Modified Cash Basis - Fiduciary Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2015

Private-Purpose

Trust Fund
Additions:

interest Income 850.00
Deductions:

Other a50.00
Change in Net Position 0.00
Net Position - January 1 56,000.00
Net Position - December 31 50,000.00

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Note 1

CITY OF McCLUSKY
McClusky, North Dakota

Notes to the Financial Statements
Decembexr 31, 2016 and 2015

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The City of McClusky operates under a city council form of government.
The financial statements of the city have been prepared on a modified
cash basis, which is a comprehensive basis of accounting other than
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
{GAAP) as applied to government units. The Government Accounting
gtandards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for
establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.
The more gignificant of the government’s accounting policies are
described below.

A. Financial Reporting Entity

The accompanying financial statements present the activities of the
city. The city has considered all potential component units for which
the city ig financially accountable and other organizations for which
the nature and significance of their relationships with the city are
such that exclusion would cause the city’s financial statements to be
misleading oxr incomplete. The Government Accounting Standards Board has
set forth criteria to be considered in determining financial
accountability. This criteria includes appointing a voting majority of
an organization’s governing body and (1) the ability of the city to
impose its will on that organization or (2) the potential for the
organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or impose
specific financial burdens on the city.

Based on these criteria, the component unit discussed below is included
within the c¢ity’s reporting entity because of the significance of it's
operational or financial relationship with the city.

Discretely Preszented Component Unit: The component unit‘s column in the
basic financial statements include the financial data of the city’s one
component unit. This unit is reported in a separate column to emphasize
that it is legally separate from the city.

McClusky Airport Authority: The McClusky Airport ARuthority’s governing
board is appointed by the city’s governing board. 'The city’s governing
body has the authority to disapprove, amend, ox approve the airport
authority budget. The airport authority has the authority to issue its
ownl debt.

The financial statements of the discretely presented component unit are
presented in the bagic financial statements.
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B. Basis of Pregentation

Covernment-wide Financial Statements: The statement of net position and
the statement of activities display information about the primary
government, the City of McClusky and it’s component unit. These
statements include the financial activities of the overall government,
except for fiduciary activities. Eliminations have been made to
minimize the double-counting of internal activities. These statements
distinguish between the govermmental and business-type activities of the
city. Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes,
intergovernmental revenues, and other nonexchange transactions.
Buginess-type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees
charged to external parties. The statement of activities presents a
comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for each
function of the city’s governmental activities. Direct expenses are
those that are specifically associated with a program or function and,
therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function. Program
revemies include (a) fees and charges paid by the recipients of goods or
services offered by the programg and (b} grants and contributions that
are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a
particular program. Revenues that are not classified as program
revenues, including all taxes, are presented as general revenues.

rFund Financial Statements: 'The fund financial statements provide
information about the city’s funds. Separate statements for each fund
category - govermmental, proprietary and fiduciary - are presented. The
emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental and
enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate column. All remaining
governmental and enterprise funds are aggregated and reported as
nonmajor funds.

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for gervices,
result from exchange transactions associated with the principal activity
of the fund. Exchange transactions are those in which each party
receives and gives up essentially equal values. Nonoperating revenues,
guch as subsidies and investments earnings, result from nonexchange
transactions or ancillary activities.

The city reports the following major governmental funds:
General Fund. This is the city’s primary coperating fund. It accounts
for all financial resources of the general government, except those

required to be accounted for in another fund.

Street and Road. This fund accounts for the state highway
distribution tax used for street repairs and maintenance.

Building. This fund accounts for the accumulation of resources
for the purpose of upkeep on city buildings.

Job Development Authority. This fund accounts for a portion of the
city’s sales tax collections and other activities related to job
development.

The c¢ity reports the following major enterprise funds:

Water Operating. This fund accounts for the activities of the city's
water distribution system.

Sewer Operating. This fund accounts for the activities of the city’s
sewage collection system.

Garbage Operating. This fund accounts for the activities of the city's
garbage collection system.
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The city reports the following fund types:

Private Purpose Trust Fund. This fund is used to account for resources
legally held in trust for the Kathy Davis Swimming Pool Trust Fund. All
regsources of the fund, including earnings on investments, are used for
the purpose of maintaining and operating the Kathy Davis memorial pool.

Agency Funds., These funds account for assets held by the city in a
custodial capacity as an agent on behalf of others. The city’'s agency

funds are used to account for varioug deposits of other governments.

C. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

Meagurement focus is a term used to describe "how" transactione are
recorded within the variocus financial statements. Basis of accounting
refers to "when" transactions are recorded regardless of the measurement
focus applied.

Measurement Focus

In the government-wide Statement of Net Pogsition and the Statement of
Activities, both governmental and business-like activities are presented
using the economic resources measurement focus, within the limitations
of the modified cash basis of accounting, as defined in item b below.

In the fund financial statements, the "current financial resources®
measurement focug or the "economic resources" measurement focus, as
applied to the modified cash basis of accounting, is used as
appropriate:

a. All governmental funds utilize a "current financial resources"
measurement focus. Only current financial assets and liabilities
are generally included on their balance sheets. Their operating
statements present sources and uses of available spendable financial
regources during a given period. These funds use fund balance as
their measure of available spendable financial rescurces at the end
of the period.

b. The proprietary fund utilizes an "economic resources" meagsurement
focus. The accounting objectives of this measurement focus are the
determination of operating income, changes in net position (or cost
recovery), financial. position and cash flows. All assets and
liabilities (whether current or noncurrent, financial or
nonfinancial) associated with their activities are reported.
Proprietary fund equity is classified as net position.

Basig of Accounting

In the government-wide Statement of Net Position and Statement of
Activities and the fund financial statements, governmental, business-

like and fiduciary fund activities are presented using a modified cash
basig of accounting. This basis recognizes assets, liabilities, net
position/fund equity, revenues, and expenditures/expenses when they result
from cash transactions with a provision for depreciation in the
government-wide statements and proprietary fund statements. This basis

is a comprehensive basis of accounting other than accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.
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As a result of the use of this modified cash basis of accounting,
certain assets and their related revenues {such as accounts receivable
and revenue for billed or provided services not yet collected) and
certain liabilities and their related expenses (such as accounts payable
and expenses for goods or services received but not yet paid, and
accrued expenses and liabilities) are not recorded in these financial
statements.

If the city utilized the basis of accounting recognized as generally
accepted, the fund financial statements for gevernmmental funds would use
the modified accrual basis of accounting, while the fund financial
statements for proprietary fund types would use the accrual basis of
accounting. All government-wide financials would be presented on the
accrual basis of accounting.

D. Cagh, Cash Eguivalents and Investments

Cash and cash eguivalents include amounts in demand deposits, money
market accounts and highly liquid short-term investments with original
maturities of three months or less.

Investments consist of certificates of deposit stated at cost.

E. Capital Assets

Capital assets include plant and equipment. Assets are reported in the
governmental activitiesg column and the businesgg-type activities column
in the government-wide financial statements. Assets are also reported
in the proprietary fund statements. Capital assets are defined by the
city as agsets with an initial, individual cost of 55,000 or wmore. Such
aggets are recorded at cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or
constructed. Donated capital assgets are recorded at estimated fair
market wvalue at the date of donation. The costs of normal maintenance
and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially
extend assets lives are not capitalized. Major outlays for capital
assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.
Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets is not
capitalized.

Capital assets are depreciated using the straight line method over the
following estimated useful lives:

Buildings and Infrastructure 40 to 75 years
Machinery and Vehicles i0 years

F. Compensated Absenced

No liability is recorded for nonvesting accumulating rights to receive
sick pay benefits.

Vested or accumulated vacation leave is not reported in the government-
wide gtatement of net position as it is considered immaterial, ’

¢, Long-Term Obligationsg

In the government-wide financial statements, long-term debt and other
long-term obligationsg are reported as liabilities in the governmental
activities statement of net position. Bond premiums, discounts and
issuance costs are recognized in the current pericd since the amounts
are not material.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond
premiums, discounts and issuance costs in the current period. The face
amount of the debt is reported as other financing sources. Premiums
received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while
discounts on debt issuances are reported as other fimancing uses.
Issuance costs are reported ag debt service expenditures.
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H. Pension

For purposes of measuring net pension liability, deferred outflows of
regources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and
pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the
North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System (NDPERS); additiomns
to/deductions from NDPERS' fiduciary net position have been determined
on the same basis as they are reported by NDPERS. For this purpose,
benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.
Investments are reported at fair wvalue.

I. Fund Equity

Fund equity at the govermmental fund financial reporting level is
classified as “"fund balance." Fund equity for all other reporting is
classified as "net posgition.*

Fund Balance - Generally, fund balance represents the difference between
the current assets and current liabilities. 1In the fund financial
statements, governmental funds report fund classifications that comprise
a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which the city is bound to
honor constraints on the specific purposes for which amounts in those
funds can be spent. Fund balances are classified as follows:

Nonspendable - Fund balances are reported as nonspendable when amounts
cannot be spent because they are either (a) not in gspendable form
{(i.e., items that are not expected to be converted to cash such as
inventories or prepaid expenses) or (b) legally or contractually
required to be maintained intact {i.e., endowment funds).

Restricted - Fund balances are reported as restricted when there are
limitations imposed on their use either through the enabling
legislation adopted by the city or through extermal restrictions
imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations
of other govermments {i.e., funds restricted by state statute,
unspent bond proceeds, grants earned but not spent, debt covenants or
taxes raised for a specific purpose).

Committed - Fund balances are reported as committed when they can be
used only for specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by
formal action of the city council through the adoption of a
resolution. The city council also may modify or rescind the
commitment.

Assigned - Fund balances are reported as assigned when amounts are
constrained by the city’s intent to be used for specific purposes, but
are neither regtricted nor committed.

Unassigned - Fund balances are yeported as unassigned as the residual
amount when the balances do not meet any of the above criterion. The
city reports pogitive unassigned fund balance only in the general
fund. Negative fund balances may be reported in all funds.

Flow Assumptions - When both restricted and unrestricted amounts of fund
balance are available for use for expenditures incurred, it isg the
city’s policy to use restricted amounts first and then unrestricted
amounts as they are needed. For unrestricted amounts of fund balance,
it is the city’s policy to use fund balance in the following order:

* Committed

* Assigned
+ Unassigned
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Note 2

Net Position - Net position represents the difference between assets and
liabilities. ©Net investment in capital assets consists of capital
assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the ocutstanding
balances of any borrowing used (i.e., the amount that the city has not
spent) for the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets.
Net position is reported as restricted as described in the fund balance
section above. All other net position is reported as unrestricted.

J. Interfund Trangactionsg

In the governmental and proprietary fund statements, transactions that
constitute reimbursements to a fund for expenditures initially made from
it that are properly applicable to another fund, are recorded as
expenditures in the reimbursing fund and as reductions of expenditures
in the fund that is reimbursed.

All other interfund transactions, except reimbursewments, are reporxrted as
transfers.

In the government-wide financial statements, interfund transactions have
been eliminated.

K. Use of Egtimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the special
purpose framework (SPF) used by the city regquires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and
disclosures (such as estimated useful lives in determining depreciation
expense) ; accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

In accordance with North Dakota Statutes, the city wmaintains deposits at
the depository banks designated by the governing board. All
depositories are members of the Federal Reserve System.

Deposits must either be deposited with the Bank of North Dakota or in
other financial institutions situated and doing business within the
state. Deposits, other than with the Bank of North Dakota, must be
fully insured or bonded. In lieu of a bond, a financial institution may
provide a pledge of securities equal to 110% of the deposits not covered
by insurance or bonds.

Authorized collateral includes bills, notes or bonds issued by the
United States government, its agencies or instrumentalities, all bonds
and notes guaranteed by the United States government, Federal Land Bank
bonds, bonds, notes, warrants, certificates of indebtedness, insured
certificates of deposit, shares of investwments companies registered
under the Investment Companies Act of 1940, and all other forms of
securities issued by the State of North Dakota, its boards, agencies or
instrumentalities or by any county, city, township, school district,
park district or amy other political subdivision of the State of North
Dakota, whether payable from specilal revenues or supported by the full
faith and credit of the issuing body and bonds issued by another state
of the United States or other securities approved by the banking board.
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Note 3

AL December 31, 2016 the city’s carrying amount of deposits was $232,322
and the bank balance was $237,091 which was covered by Federal
Depository Insurance.

At December 31, 2015 the city’s carrying amount of deposits was $236,709
and the bank balance was $239,187 which was covered by Federal
Depository Insurance.

Credit Risk

The city may invest idle funds as authorized in North Dakota Statutes,
as follows:

(1) Bonds, treasury bills and notes, or other securities that are a
direct obligation insured or guaranteed by, the treasury of the
United States, or its agencies, instrumentalities or
organizations created by an act of Congress.

(2} Securities sold under agreements to repurchase written by a
financial institution in which the underlying securities for the

agreement to repurchase are of the type listed above.

{(3) Certificates of deposit fully insured by the federal deposit
insurance corporation.

{4} Obligations of the State.

At December 31, 2016 the city held certificates of deposit in the
amount of $114,000, which are all considered deposits.

At December 31, 2015 the city held certificates of depeosit in the
amount of $114,000, which are all considered deposits.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The city does mot have a limit on the amount the city may invest in any
one issuer.

PROPERTY TAXES

The county treasurer acts as an agent to collect property taxes levied
in the county for all taxing authorities. Any mabterial tax collections
are distributed after the end of each month.

Property taxes are levied as of January 1. The property taxes attach as
an enforceable lien on property on January 1 and may be paid in two
installments. The first installment includes one-half of the real
estate taxes and all the special assessments and the second installment
igs the balance of the real estate taxes. The first installment is due
by March 1 and the second installment is due by October 15. A 5%
discount on property taxes is allowed if all taxes and special
assessments are paid by February 15. After the due dates, the bill
becomes delinguent and penalties are assessed.

Most property owners choose to pay property taxes and special

assegsments in a single paywent on or before February 15 and receive
the discount on the property taxes.
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Note 4 INTERFUND RECEIVABLES/PAYABLES

Interfund receivables/payables are created by a negative cash balance in
various funds. The amounts shown as interfund payables represent the
amount of negative cash in the funds. Interfund receivables/payables
for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 are as follows:

Receivable Payable

Fund Fund
December 31, 2016
General Fund 1,472.40
Advertiging 1,472.40
Water Operating 1,444.87
Sewer Operating 1,444.87
December 31, 2015
General Fund 1,342.85
Advertising 1,342.85
Water Operating 2,090.65
Sewer Operating 2,090.65

Note 5 CAPITAIL ASSETS

The following is a summary of changes in capital assets for the years
ended December 31:

2016

Balance Balance
January 1 Increases Decreaseg _December 31

Governmental Activities:
Capital assets
being depreciated:

Buildings and

Infrastructure 200,000 200,000
Machinery and

Vehicles 70,475 i 70,475

Total 270,475 270,475

Less accumulated
depreciation for:

Buildings and

Infrastructure 97,069 2,667 99,736
Machinery and

Vehicles 65,776 2,347 68,123

Total 162,845 5,014 167,859

Governmental Activitiesg
Capital Asgets, Net 107,630 (5,014} -0- 102,616
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Balance

January 1

Capital assets
being depreciated:

Buildings and

2015

Increagegs Decreagesg

Balance

December 31

Infrastructure 200,000 200,000
Machinery and
Vehicles 70,475 70,475
Total 270,475 270,475
Less accumulated
depreciation fozr:
Buildings and
Infrastructure 84,402 2,667 97,069
Machinery and
Vehicles 63,429 2,347 65,776
Total 157,831 5,014 162,845
Governmental Activities
Capital Assets, Net 112,644 {5,014) -0- 107,630
2016
Balance Balance

January 1

Increagses Decreasgses

December 31

Business-type Activities:
Capital assets
being depreciated:

Buildings and
Infrastructure 389,87

5

389,875

Less accumulated
depreciation for:

Buildings and

Infrastructure 148,472

9,747

158,219

Businesgs-type Activities
Capital Rssets, Net 241,40

3
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2015

Balance Balance
January 1 Increases  Decreages _December 31
Buginessa-type Activities:
Capital assets
being depreciated:
Buildings and
Infrastructure 389,875 389,875
Lesg accumulated
depreciation for:
Buildings and .
Infrastructure 138,725 9,747 148,472
Business-type Activities
Capital Assets, Net 251,150 (9,747) -0- 241,403

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the city as

follows for the vears ended December 31:

2016 2015

Governmental Activities:

General Government 2,400 2,400

Streets and Public Works 2,614 2,614
Total 5,014 5,014
Buginegs-type Actiwvitieg:

Water Operating 1,000 1,000

Sewer Operating 8,747 8,747
Total 9,747 9,747

Note 6 LONG-TERM DEEBT

Changes in Long-Term Liagbilities.

During the year ended December 31,

2016, the following changes occurred in liabilities reported in the

long~term liabilities:

Business-type Activities

Balance Balance Due Within
January 1  Increageg _Decreases December 31 _One Year
Bank Loan Payable 0= 27,000 1,402 25,598 6,499
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Outstanding debt at December 31, 2016 ceonsists of the following:

Note 7

Note 8

Business-type Activities

General Obligation Debt. General obligation debt is a direct obligation
and pledges the full faith and credit of the governmment. General
obligation debt outstanding at December 31, 2016, is as follows:

Bank Loan Pavable. The city has taken out a loan to provide funds for
the sewer lines flushing and scoping. Bank loan payable at December
31, 2016 is as follows:

$27,000.00 loan payable with American Bank

Center. This loan is due in quarterly

installments $1,858.39 through September 1,

2020; interest is at 4.25%. 25,598.43

The annual requirements to amortize the outstanding loan payable are
as follows:

Year Ending

December 31 Principal Interest
2017 6,498 .56 935.00
2018 6,774.81 658.75
2019 7,008.56 425.00
2020 5,316.50 258.67
Total 25,598.43 2,277.42

DEFICIT FUND BALANCES

The following fund had a deficit balance as of Decenber 31:

2016 2015
Special Revenue Fund
Advertiging (1,472.40) {i,342.85)
Enterprise Fund
Sewer Operating (1,444.87) (2,090.65)

The city plans to eliminate these deficits with future revenue
collections.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The City of McClusky is exposed to various risks of less relating to
torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and
omigsions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.

In 1986, state agencies and political subdivisions of the State of North
Dakota joined together to form the North Dakota Ingurance Reserve Fund
{(NDIRF), a public entity risk pool currently operating as a common risk
management and insurance program for the state and over 2,000 political
subdivisions. The city pays an annual prewmium to NDIRF for its general
liability, automobile and public assets insurance coverage. The
coverage by NDIRF ig limited to losses of $2,000,000 per occurrence for
general liability and automobile; and $86,475% for public assets.

46



Note 9

The city also participates in the North Dakota Fire and Tornado Fund and
the State Bonding Fund. The city pays an annual premium to the Fire and
Tornade Fund to cover property damage to buildings and personal
property. Replacement cost coverage is provided by estimating
replacement cost in consultation with the Fire and Tornado Fund. The
Fire and Tornado Fund is reinsured by a third party insurance carrier
For losses in excess of 1,000,000 per occurrence during a 12 month
period. The State Bonding Fund currently provides the city with a
blanket fidelity bond coverage in the amount of $154,000 for its
employees. The State Bonding Fund does not currently charge any premium
for this coverage.

The city has worker's compensation with the Department of Workforce
safety and Insurance; and purchases commercial insurance for employee
health and accident insurance.

Settled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded insurance
coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

PENSTON PLAN

North Dakota Public Employeces Retirement System (Main System)

The following brief description of NDPERS is provided for general
information purposes only. Participants should refer to NDCC Chapter
54-52 for more complete information.

NDPERS is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan
that covers substantially all employvees of the State of North Dakota,
its agencies and various participating political subdivisions. NDPERS
provides for pension, death and disability benefits. The cost to
administer the NDPERS plan is financed by investment income and
contributions.

Responsibility for administration of the NDPERS benefits program is
assigned to a Board comprised of seven members. The Board consists of a
Chaiyman, who is appointed by the Governor; one member appointed by the
Attorney General; one member appointed by the State Health Officer;
three wmembers elected by active membership of the NDPERS system; and

cne member elected by the retired public employees.

Pension Benefits

Benefits are set by statute. NDPERS has no provision or policies with
respect to automatic and ad hoc post-retirement benefit increases.
Members of the Main System are entitled to unreduced monthly pen51on
benefits beginning when the gum of age and years of credited service
equal or exceed 85 (Rule of 85), or at normal retirement age (65). For
members hired on or after January 1, 2016 the Rule of 85 will be
replaced with the Rule of 90 with a minimum age of 60. The monthly
pension benefit is equal to 2.00% of their average monthly salary, using
the highest 36 months out of the last 180 wmonths of service, for each
yvear of service. The plan permits early retirement at ages 55-64 with
three or more years of service.

Members may elect to receive the pension benefits in the form of a
single life, joint and survivor, term-certain annuity, or partial lump
sum with ongoing annuity. Members may elect to receive the value of
their accumulated contributions, plus interest, as a lump gum
distribution upon retirement or termination, or they may elect to
receive their benefits in the form of an annuity. For each member
electing an annuity, total payment will not be less than the members’
accumulated contributions plus interest.
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Death and Disability Benefits

Death and disability benefits are set by statute. If an active member
dies with less than three years of sgervice for the Main System, a death
benefit equal to the value of the member’'s accumulated contributions,
plus interest, is paid to the wember’s beneficiary. If the member has
earned more than three years of credited service for the Main System,
the surviving spouse will be entitled to a single payment refund,
life-time monthly payments in an amount equal to 50% of the mewber’s
accrued normal retirement benefit, or monthly payments in an amount
equal to the member’s accrued 100% Joint and Survivor retirement benefit
if the member had reached normal retirement age prior to date of death.
If the surviving spouse dies before the member’s accumulated pension
benefits are paid, the balance will be payable to the surviving spouse’s
designated beneficiary.

Eligible members who become totally disabled after a minimum of 180 days
of service, receive monthly disability benefits equal to 25% of their
final average salary with a minimum benefit of $100. To qualify under
this section, the member has to become digabled during the pericd of
eligible employment and apply for benefits within one year of
termination. The definition of disabled is set by the NDPERS in the
North Dakota Administrative Code.

Refunds of Member Account Balance

Upon termination, if a member of the Main System is not vested (is not
65 or does not have three years of service), they will receive the
accumulated member contributions and vested employer contributions, plus
interest, or may elect to receive this amount at a later date. TIf the
member has wested, they have the option of applying for a refund or can
remain as a terminated vested participant. If a member terminated and
withdrew their accumulated member contribution and is subsequently
reemployed, they have the option of repurchasing their previous service.

Member and Employer Contributions

Member and employer contributions paid to NDPERS are set by statute and
are established as a percent of covered compensation. Member
contribution rates are 7% and employer contribution rates are 7.12%

of covered compensation.

The member’s account balance includes the vested employer contributions
equal to the member’s contributions to an eligible deferred compensation
plan. The minimum member contribution is $25 and the maximum may not
exceed the following:

1 to 12 months of sgervice -
Greater of one percent of monthly salary or $25

13 to 25 months of service -~
Greater of two percent of monthly salary or $25

25 to 36 months of service -
Greater of three percent of monthly salary or $25

Longer than 36 months of service -
Greater of four percent of monthly salary or 525
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Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense; and Deferred Outflows of Resources
and Deferred Inflows of Reszources Related to Pensions

At December 31, 2016, the City of McClusky reported a liability of
524,772 for its proportionate share of the net pension liability. The
net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2015 and the total
pengion liability used to calculate the net pension liability was
determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The city’s
proportion of the net pension liability was based on the city’s share of
covered payroll in the Main System pension plan relative to the covered
payroll of all participating Main System employers. At June 30, 2015
the city’s proportion was .003643 percent, which was an increase of
.000402 from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2014.

For the year ended December 31, 2016 the city recognized pension expense
of $2,831. At December 31, 2016 the city reported deferred outflows of
regources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, from
the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
outflows Inflows
of Resources of Resources
Differences between expected
and actual experience 719

Changes in assumptions 2,207

Net difference between
projected and actual earnings
on pension plan investments 2,862 3,385

Changes in proportion and

differences between employer

contributions and proportionate

share of contributions 2,471 128

City contributions
subsequent to the
measurement date (see below) 2,426

Total 8,478 5,720

$2,426 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions
resulting from city contributiong subsequent to the measurement date
will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the
vear ended December 31, 2017.

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension

expense as follows:

Year ended

June 30:
2017 (201)
2018 (201}
2015 (201}
20290 880
2021 52
Thereafter 0
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Actuarial assumptions. The total pension liability in the July 1, 2015
actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial
agsumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Inflation 3.50%
Salary increases 4.50% per annum
Investment rate of return 2.00%, net of investment expenses.

Cost-of-living adjustments None

For active members, inactive members and healthy retirees, mortality
rates were based on the RP-2000 Combined Healthy Mortality Table set
back two years for maleg and three years for females, projected
generationally using the SSA 2014 Intermediate Cost scale from 2014.
For disabled retirees, mortality rates were based on the RP-2000
Disabled Retiree Morality Table with ages set back one year for males
(not set back for females).

The actuarial assumptions used were based on the results of an actuarial
experience study completed in 2015. They are the same as the
assumptions used in the July 1, 2015, funding actuarial valuation for
NDPERS.

As a result of the 2015 actuarial experience study, the NDPERS Board
adopted several changes to the actuarial assumptions effective July 1,
2015. This includes changes to the mortality tables, disability
incidence rates, retirement rates, administrative expenses, salary
scale, and percent married assumption.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was
determined using a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges
of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net pension
plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major
asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term
expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of
return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected
inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each
major asset clags included in the fund’s target asset allocation are
summarized in the following table:

Long-Term

Target Expected Real
Asget Class Allocation Rate of Return
Domestic Equity 31% 6.90%
International Equity 21% 7.55%
Private Equity 5% 11.30%
Domestic Fixed Income 17% 1.52%
International Eguity Income 5% 0.45%
Global Real RAssets 20% 5.38%
Cash Equivalents 1% 0.00%

Discount rate. The discount rate used to measure the total pension
liability was 8 percent as of June 30, 2015. The projection of casgh
flows used to determine the discount rate assumes that member and
employer contributions will be made at rates equal to those based on the
July 1, 2015, Actuarial Valuation Report. For this purpose, only
employer contributions that are intended to fund benefits of current
plan members and their beneficiaries are included. Projected employer
contributions that are intended to fund the service costs of future plan
members and their beneficiaries, as well as projected contributions from
future plan members, are not included. Based on those assumptions, the
pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to
make all projected future benefit payments for current plan members as
of June 30, 2015. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on
pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit
payments to determine the total pension liability as of June 30, 2015.
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Note 10

Sengitivity of the city’s proportionate share of the nef pension
liability to changes in the disgcount rate. The following presents the
city’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using
the discount rate of 8 percent, as well as what the city’'s proportionate
share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using
a discount rate that is l-percentage-point lower (7 percent) or
l-percentage-point higher (9 percent) than the current rate:

1% Decreasge Current Rate 1% Increase

(7%) (8%) {9%)
The city’'s
proportionate share of
the net pension liability 37,986 24,772 13,960

Pension plan fiduciary net position. Detailed information about the
pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately
issued NDPERS financial report.

PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT
A prior period adjustment was made to the Governmental Activities. This

adjustment wasg made to account for the district’s net pension liability
less it‘'s deferred ocutflows of resources at December 31, 2014.
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Revenhues:

Taxes

L.icenses, Permits and Fees
Intergovernmental

Fines and Forfeits
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

Expenditures:
Current:

General Government
Public Safety

Streets and Public Works
Culture and Recreation

Total Expenditures

Net Change in fund Balances

Fund Balance - January 1

Fund Balance - December 31

CITY OF McCLUSKY

McClusky, North Dakota

Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Modified Cash Basis

General Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 2016

Variance with
Final Budget

Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
20,606.00 20,606.00 38,156.31 17,550.31

700.00 700.00 645.00 (55.00)
£6,150.00 46,150.00 30,118.46 (16,031.54)
2,200.00 2,200.00 2,868.00 668.00
22,600.00 22,600.00 7,663.07 (14,936.93)
92,256.00 92,256.00 79,450.84 €12,805.16)
5¢,775.00 57,775.00 37,122.92 20,652.08
33,000.00 33,000.00 31,421.35 1,578.65

9,737.13 (9,737.13)
18,500.00 18,500.00 13,730.04 4,769.96

109,275.00 109,275.00 92,011.44 17,263.56

(17,019.00) €17,019.00) (12,560.60) 4 45840
29,206.02 29,206.02 29,206.02
12,187.02 12,187.02 16,645.42 4,458.40
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Revenues:

Taxes

Licenses, Permits and Fees
Intergovernmental

Fines and Forfeits
Miscellaneocus

Total Revenues

Expendi tures:
Current:

General Government
Public Safety

Streets and Public Works
Culture and Recreation

Total Expenditures

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balance - January 1

Fund Balance - December 31

CITY OF McCLUSKY

McClusky, North Dakota

Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Modified Cash Basis

General Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 2015

Variance with
Final Budget

originat Final Positive

Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
25,966.00 25,966.00 39,339.22 13,373.22
350.00 350.00 501.00 t51.00
47,100.00 47,100.00 45,541 _87 (1,558.13)
650,00 650.00 2,020.00 1,370.00
14,450.00 14,450.00 5,664.40 (8,785 60)
88,516.00 88,516.00 93,066.49 £,550.49
51,480.00 51,480.00 42 ,649.98 8,830.02
31,800.00 31,800.00 29,417.00 2,383.00
9,956.52 (9,956.52)
23,000.00 23,000.00 17,068.81 5,931.19
106,280.00 106,280.00 99,092.31 7,187.69
17, 764,00 (17,764.00) (6,025.82) 11,738.18

35,231.84 35,231.84 35,231.84

17,467.84 17,467.84 29,206.02 11,738.18
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CITY OF McCLUSKY
McClusky, North Dakota

Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Modified Cash Basis
Street and Road Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2016

Variance with
Final Budget

Original Final . Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
Revenues:
Taxes 4.33 4£.33
Intergovernmental 53,775.20 53,775.20
Miscel laneous . 2,313.62 2,313.62
Total Revenues 56,093.15 56,093.15
Expenditures:
Current:
$treets and Public Works 29,635.00 29,635.00 28,839.33 795.67
Net Change in Fund Balances (29,635.00) (29,635.00) 27,253.82 56,888.82
Fund Balance - January 1 42,099.26 42,099.26 42,099.26
Fund Balance - December 31 12,464.26 12,464 .26 69,353.08 56,888.82
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Revenues:

Taxes
Intergovernmental
Miscel laneous

Total Revenues

Expenditures:
current:
Streets and Public Works

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balance - January 1

Fund Balance - December 31

CITY OF McCLUSKY
McClusky, North Dakot

Street and Road Fund

a

for the Year Ended December 31, 2015

Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Modified Cash Basis

Variance wWith
Fina! Budget

original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
220.33 220,33
60,596.20 60,596.20
198.50 198.50
61,015.03 61,015.03
61,500.00 61,500.00 32,609.39 28,890.61
(61,500.00) (61,500.00) 28,405.64 89,905.64
13,693.62 13,693.62 13,693.62
(47,806.38) (47 ,806.38) 42,099.26 89,905.64
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Note 1

Note 2

CITY OF McCLUSKY
McClusky, Noxrth Dakota

Motes to the Budgetary Comparison Schedules
December 31, 2016 and 2015

SUMMARY QF SIGNIFICANT BUDGET POLICIES

Based upon available financial information and requests by the governing
board, the city auditor prepares the preliminary budget. The city
budget is prepared for the general and special revenue funds by functien
and activity on the cash basis of accounting. The preliminary budget
includes the proposed expenditures and the means of financing them. All
annual appropriations lapse at year-end.

The governing board holds a public hearing where any taxpayer may
testify in favor of, or against, any proposed expenditures or tax
levies requested in the preliminary budget. After the budget hearing
and on or before October 7, the board adopts the final budget. The
final budget must be filed with the county auditor by October 10. No
expenditure shall be made, or liability incurred, in excess of the total
appropriation by fund except as authorized by North Dakota Century Code
Section 40-40-18. However, the governing board may amend the budget
during the year for any revenues and appropriations not anticipated at
the time the budget wasg prepared. The budget amendments must be
approved by the board and the approval must be noted in the official
proceedings of the board.

LEGAL COMPLIANCE

The governing board 4id not amend the budgets during the years ended
December 31, 2016 and 2015.

Excess of Actual Expenditures Over Budget

Expenditures exceeded budget in the following funds for the years ending
December 31, 2016 and 2015:

2016 2015
Special Revenue Funds
* Building 22,232.88 6,181.03
* Job Development Authority 92,946.84 61,301.15
Advertising 139.47
Social Security 593.07
Community Center - Fire Hall 1,952.75

* A budget was not prepared for this fund.

No remedial action is anticipated or required by the city regarding
these excess expenditures.
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CITY OF McCLUSKY
McClusky, North Dakota

Schedule of Employer’s Share of Net Pension Liability
ND Public Employees Retirement System
Last 10 Fiscal Years*

2015 2016
City’s proportion of the
net pension liability 0.003241% 0.003643%
City’s proportionate share
of the net pension liability 20,571 24,772
City’'s covered-employee
payroll 27,297 32,457
City’s proportionate share
of the net pension liability
a3 a percentage of its
covered-employee payroll 75.36% 76.32%
Plan fiduciary net position
as a percentage of the total
pension liability 77.70% 77.15%

Schedule of Employer Centributions
ND Public Employees Retirement System
Last 10 Fiscal Years*

2015 2016

Statutorily required contribution 1,810 2,311

Contributions in xelation to the )

statutorily required contribution {(1,810) {(2,311)
' Contribution deficiency (excess) 0 0

City’s covered-employee

payroll 27,297 32,457

Contributions as a percentage

of covered-employee payroll 6.63% 7.12%

* Complete data for this schedule is not available prior to 2015.

- For changes of assumptioneg, see Note 9 to the financial statements.
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Major Governmental Funds:
General

Street and Road

Bui lding

Job Development Authority

Total Major Governmental Funds

Non-Major Governmental Funds:
Advertising

Social Security

Community Center - Fire Hall

Total Non-Major Governmental Funds
Total Governmental funds

Major Enterprise Funds
Water Operating
Sewer Operating
Garbage Operating

Total Major Enterprise Funds

Fiduciary funds
Private Purpose Trust Fund

Kathy Davis Swimming
Pool Trust Fund

Agency Funds
Cemetery

CDBG #3715-CD13-H
Total Agency Funds
Total Fiduciary Funds
Total Primary Government
Discretely Presented

Component Unit
Airport

Total Reporting Entity

CETY OF McCLUSKY
McClusky, North Dakota

Schedule of Fund Activity
Arising from Cash Transactions
For the Year Ended December 31, 2016

Balance Transfers Transfers Balance
1-1-16 Receipts In out Disbursements 12-31-16
29,206.02 79,450.84 92,011.44 16,645.42
42,099.26 56,093.15 28,839.33 69,353.08
30,024.24 4,899.21 2é,232.88 12,690.57
41,685.03 104,055,52 92,946 .84 52,793.71
143,014.55 244 ,698.72 236,030.49 151,482.78
(1,342.85) 475.95 605.50 (1,472.40)
13,272.19 8,191.61 8,372.84 13,090.96
16,175.02 951.83 8,952.75 8,174.10
28,104.36 9,619.39 17,931.09 19,792.66
171,118.91 254,118.11 253,961.58 171,275.44
12,437.43 71,040.21 81,986.53 1,491.11
(2,090.65) £3,249.70 42 ,603.92 ¢1,444.87)
5,243.67 44 ,152.46 38,395.38 11,000.75
15,5%90.45 158,442.37 162,985.83 11,046.99
50,000.00 850.59 850.59 50,000.00
832.71 832.71
90,400.00 ©0,400.00
91,232.71% 91,232.71
50,000.00 92,083.30 92,083.30 50,000.00
236,709.36 504,663.78 509,030.71 232,322.43
27,728.90 5,901.05 3,635.02 29,994.93
264 ,438.26 510,544.83 5i12,665.73 262,317.36
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Major Goverpmental Funds:
General
Street and Road
Building
Job Development Authority

Total Major Governmental Funds

Non-Major Governmental Funds:
Advertising

Social Security

Community Center - Fire Hall

Total Non-Hajor Governmental Funds

Total Governmental Funds

Major Enterprige Funds
Water Operating

Sewer Operating
Garbage Operating

Total Major Enterprise Funds

Fiduciary Funds
Private Purpose Trust Fund

Kathy Davis Swimming
Pool Trust Fund

Agency Funds
Cemetery

CDBG #3715-CD13-H
Total Agency Funds
Total Fiduciary Funds
Total Primary Government
Discretely Presented

Component Unit
Airport

Total Reporting Entity

CITY OF McCLUSKY
MeClusky, North Dakota

Schedute of Fund Activity
Arising from Cash Transactions
For the Year Ended December 31, 2015

Balance Transfers Transfers Balance
1-1-15 Receipts In out Disbursements 12-31-15
35,231.84 93,066.49 99,092.31 29,206.02
13,693.62 61,015.03 32,609.39 42,099.26
32,025.09 4,180.18 6,181.03 30,024 .24
40,940.18 62,046.00 61,301.15 41,685.03
121,890.73 220,307.70 199,183.88 143,014.55
(449.30) 445,92 1,339.47 (1,342.85)
12,147.72 8,717.54 7,593.07 13,272.19
15,463.16 B8%1.84 159.98 16,175.02
27,141.58 10,055.30 2,092.52 28,104.36
149,032.31 230,363.00 208,276.40 171,118.91
12,519.35 73,243.91 73,325.83 12,437.43
5,900.84 15,833.97 23,825.46 (2,090.65)
10,424.58 43,597.50 48,778.41 5,243.67
28 ,844.77 132,675.38 145,929.70 i5,590.45
50,000.00 850.00 850.00 50,000.00
359.66 779.04 1,138.70
31,400.00 31,400.00
359.66 32,179.04 32,538.70
50,359.66 33,029.04 33,388.70 50,000.00
228,236.74 396,067.42 387,594.80 236,709.36
25,427.32 6,904.32 4,602.74 27,728.90
253,664.06 402,971.74 392,197.54 264 ,438.26
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE
AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Governing Board
City of McClusky
McClusky, North Dakota

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States, the financilal statements
of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the
discretely presented component unit, each major fund and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the City of McClusky, McClusky, North
Dakota, as of and for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, and
the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the city’'s bagic financial statements, and have issued our
report thereon dated May 26, 2017.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

in planning and performing our audits of the financial statements, we
congidered the city'e internal control over financial reporting
(internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our
oplnlons on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the city’s internal
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness
of the city’'s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of
a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course
of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and
correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in intermnal control, such
that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of
the city's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected on a timely basis. A 31gn1f1cant deficiency is a deficiency,
or a combination of deficiencies, in intermal control that is less
gevere than a material weakness, vet important enough to merit attention
by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose
described in the first paragraph of this secticn and was not designed to
identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not
identified. @iven these limitations, during our audits we did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be
material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have
not been identified. We did identify certain deficiencies in internal
control, described in the accompanying schedule of findings and
responses ag items II-1 and II-2, that we consider to be gignificant
deficiencies.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the city's
financial statements are free of waterial misstatement, we performed
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement
amounts. However, providing an opinion on cowmpliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audits, and accordingly, we do
not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

City’s Regponse to Findings

The city’s response to the findings identified in our audits are
described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Responses. The
city’s response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audits of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no
opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is sclely to deseribe the scope of our
testing of intermal control and compliance and the results of that
testing, and not to provide an cpinion on the effectiveness of the
city’s internal control or on compliance. This is an integral part of
an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering the city’s intermal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Ko, ond. Mepaet™

Rath and Mehrer, P.C.
Bismarck, North Dakota

May 26, 2017
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CITY OF McCLUSKY
MceClusky, North Dakota

Schedule of Findings and Responses
For the Years Ended December 31, 2016 and 2015

SECTION I - SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS:

Financial Statements

Type of Auditor’s Report Issued:

Governmental Activities Unmodified-Modified Cash Basis
Buginess-Type Activities Unmodified-Modified Cash Basis
Discretely Presented Component Unit Unmodified-Modified Cash Basis
Major Governmental Funds Unmodified-Modified Cash Basis
Major Business-Type Funds Unmodified-Modified Cash Basis
Aggregate Remaining Fund Information Unmodified-Modified Cash Basis

Internal control over financial reporting:

* Material weakness(es) identified? Yes X No

* Significant deficiency(ies) identified? X Yes None Reported

Noncompliance Material to financial
statements noted? Yes X No

SECTION II - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS:

Significant Deficiencies

i.

Segregation of Duties

Condition: The city has one person responsible for wost
accounting functions.

Criteria: There should be gufficient accounting personnel so
duties of employees are segregated. The segregation of duties
would provide better control over assets of the city.

Effect: There is no segregation of duties as one employee is
responsible to collect monies, deposit monies, issue checks, send
checks to vendors, record receipts and disbursements in journals,
maintain the general ledger and prepare financial statements.
This increases the risk of misstatement of the city’s financial
condition.

Recommendation: Due to the gize of the city, it is not feasible
to obtain proper separation of duties and no recommendation will

be made.

Client Responge: No response is considered necessary.
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Financial Statement Preparation

Condition: The city’s financial statements as of December 31, 2016
and 2015 are prepared by the city’s external auditors.

Criteria: A good system of internal controls requires the city
to determine that the financial statements are prepared based on
the modified cash basis of accounting. This means that the city
must maintain knowledge of current accounting principles and
required financial statement disclosures.

EBffect: A control gsystem is not in place to determine that the
financial statements are properly stated and in compliance with
the modified cash basis of accounting.

Recommendation: We recommend the city obtain the necessary
knowledge of current accounting principles to prepare financial
statements or outsource the preparation of its financial
statements.

Client Response: It is not cost effective for the city to prepare
its own financial statements.
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Governing Board
City of McClusky
McaClusky, North Dakota

Our audits of the financial records of the City of McClusky, McClusky,
North Dakota, for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 have
digcloged opportunities for improvements in the operations of the city.
Items which we believe should be brought to your attention are set forth
below:

* k kK %k % K K Kk K *

BUDGETS

Budgets were not prepared for all special revenue funds of the city.
NDCC #40-40-05 requires the preparation of a separate schedule for each
special revenue fund of the city. We recommend that the city comply
with this section of the century code and prepare a separate schedule
"o for each special revenue fund, including those which do not have a
mill levy, when preparing future annual budgets.

REVIEW OF PLEDGE OF SECURITIES

Per our review of the governing board’s minutes, we did not note a
semi-annual review of the pledge of securities. NDCC section 21-04-11
requires the governing bkoard to review the pledge of securities at least
every six months to determine if security pledges are adequate or are
needed to protect city deposits. We recommend the board review the
pledge of securities semi-annually and such action should be noted in the
minutes.

INTERNAT, CONTROLS OVER CHECK PROCESSING

Per our test of expenditures, we noted that the city auditor signs
checks and also has control of the mayor’'s signature stamp, which is the
required second signature. Dual signatures on checks is an internal
control strength as a second individual is required to review and/or
approve all expenditures prior to payment. Since the auditor has
control of the signature stamp and is also authorized to sign checks,
this internal control is eliminated. We recommend that the mayor
maintain possession of her signature stamp or authorize an individual,
gsuch as another council membexr, who is not involved with preparing
checksg, to use it.

 * * K% % * * x Kk *

This letter is intended sclely for the use of management and should not
be used for any other purpose, This restriction is not intended to
limit the distribution of this letter which, upon acceptance by the
city, is a matter of public record.

We would like to acknowledge all the assistance and many courtesies
extended to us by the persomnel of the city during our audits.

Kot ond. Pefrier

Rath and Mehrer, P.C.

May 26, 2017
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